

*** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED ***

3304:1-21-01 **Definitions.**

The following terms are used throughout Chapter 3304:1-21 of the Administrative Code.

- (A) "Accessible Format" is providing information, forms, BE computer programs, and reports to all licensees in the format/media they have requested and on file with BE, including but not limited to regular print, large print, ~~braille~~Braille, ~~audio-tape~~, or electronic media.
- (B) "Active Participation" is when the bureau of services for the visually impaired (BSVI) and the Ohio vendors representative committee (OVRC) meaningfully collaborate on major administrative decisions and policy and program development decisions affecting overall administration of Ohio's vending facility program pursuant to 34 CFR 395.14 and 3304:1-21-12 of the Administrative Code.
- (C) "Agent" is any individual or entity that BE authorizes to carry out a responsibility under division 3304:1 of the Administrative Code.
- (D) "Blind/legally blind" is a physical condition in which the central visual acuity is not more than 20/200 in the better eye with correcting lenses; or in which the visual acuity with proper correction, if better than 20/200, is accompanied by a limit to the field of vision in the better eye to such a degree that its widest diameter subtends an angle of no greater than twenty degrees as defined in division (B) of section 3304.28 of the Revised Code.
- (E) "BSVI" (i.e., bureau of services for the visually impaired) or "bureau," is the designated Ohio agency responsible for implementing the provisions of the Randolph-Sheppard Act and its amendments and sections 3304.28 to 3304.35 of the Revised Code in addition to the purpose outlined in paragraph (B) of rule 3304-1-01 of the Administrative Code. ~~The "rehabilitation services commission"~~Opportunities for Ohioans with Disabilities (RSCOOD) is the agency responsible for overseeing BSVI.
- (F) "Bureau-grantor agreement" (BGA) is the signed agreement between BSVI and grantor for a business enterprise (BE) facility.
- (G) "Bureau-operator agreement" (BOA) is a signed permanent ~~or temporary~~ agreement between BSVI and the operator of a facility.
- (H) "Bureau-temporary operator agreement" (BTOA) is a signed temporary agreement between BSVI and the operator of a facility for a limited period of time which is designated in the agreement.

3304:1-21-01

- (H)(I) "Business Enterprise ~~assistant~~area manager" is the BSVI employee who reports directly to the BE program manager of BSVI or the director's designee and is the principal field manager for the BE program in an assigned area of the state.
- (H)(J) "Business Enterprise program" (BE) is the program within BSVI responsible to carry out the provisions pursuant to 34 ~~C.F.R.~~CFR part 395 of the Randolph-Sheppard Act, sections 3304.28 to 3304.35 of the Revised Code, and paragraph (F)(1) of rule 3304:1-21-12 of the Administrative Code.
- (H)(K) "BE manager" is the BSVI staff person who reports directly to the director of BSVI and shall direct and monitor the operation of the business enterprise program, its staff and its funds statewide, recommend and institute changes in the program, enter into settlements when appropriate, and perform such other duties as required by the BSVI director.
- (K)(L) "Business Enterprise rules" is the complete set of administrative rules governing the BE, which have been promulgated in accordance with section 119.03 and set forth in Chapter 3304. of the Revised Code.
- (H)(M) "Business Enterprise Specialist" (BES) is the BSVI employee assigned to provide consulting services to the operator to maximize efficiency, income and performance.
- (M)(N) "Criminal Activity" is conviction of, plea of guilty or no-contest to, or a judicial finding in any jurisdiction of ~~aggravated murder, murder, voluntary manslaughter, felonious assault, kidnapping, rape, sexual battery, gross sexual imposition, aggravated arson, aggravated robbery, or aggravated burglary~~ or of a felony or misdemeanor of the first, second, or third degree, involving gambling, fraud or misrepresentation, theft, or any crime of moral turpitude, as long as the record of the conviction has not been sealed, a crime of moral turpitude or a crime involving fraud or deceit in procuring or attempting to procure a license.
- (N)(O) "Designee" is a BE staff member knowledgeable in BE and authorized by BE to carry out a responsibility or task.
- (O)(P) "Discipline" is a denial, revocation, or suspension of the license.
- (P)(Q) "Displaced operator" is an operator under a permanent BOA whose facility has been temporarily closed, or whose net facility sales have been temporarily reduced by ~~no less than two thirds~~at least fifty percent, for more than two weeks due to remodeling or by extraneous circumstances such as strike or disaster. In such cases, the operator shall be considered a "Displaced operator" only for the duration of the

temporary closure or temporary reduction. Should a facility be permanently closed the operator shall be considered displaced for six months after closure. A displaced operator may receive a fair minimum return payment. However, if the displaced operator is under a BTOA the fair minimum return payment will be forfeited and the operator will be compensated in accordance with the BTOA.

~~(Q)~~(R) "Electoral district" is any one of the seven geographical areas as defined by the bureau from which representatives and alternates of the Ohio vendors representative committee (OVRC) are elected to equitably represent the operators.

~~(R)~~(S) "Facility" is automatic vending machines, cafeterias, snack bars, cart services, shelters, counters, and other appropriate auxiliary equipment which may be operated by licensees who are blind which is necessary for the sale of newspapers, periodicals, confections, tobacco products, food, beverages, and other articles or services dispensed automatically or manually and prepared on or off the premises, including the vending or exchange of chances for the state lottery and as otherwise defined in 34 ~~C.F.R.~~CFR 395.1(x). A facility may consist of one or more sites as determined by BE.

~~(S)~~(T) "Facility announcement" is a notice announcing a current or forthcoming permanent operator position available in an existing or newly developed BE facility.

~~(T)~~(U) "Federal Fiscal Year" (FFY) is the time period beginning October first and ending September thirtieth.

~~(U)~~(V) "Federal property" is property as defined in 34 ~~CFR Part 395~~CFR 395.1 (g).

~~(W)~~ "Governmental property" is defined as division (C) of section 3304.28 of the Revised Code.

~~(V)~~(X) "Grantor" is the person or entity who is responsible for the property housing a BE facility.

~~(W)~~(Y) "Grantor required payment" is any fee, assessment or other financial obligation as assigned to the operator by BOA/BTOA.

~~(X)~~(Z) "Inventory adjustment charge" is reimbursement to BE or operator resulting from a difference between the value of facility goods on hand at the time of the closing inventory and the value of BE provided inventory.

~~(Y)~~(AA) "License" is a written document issued by BE to a person authorizing such

3304:1-21-01

person to operate a facility on federal or other property.

~~(Z)~~(BB) "Licensee" is any person licensed by BE to operate a facility.

~~(AA)~~(CC) "Ministerial decision" is a decision which has no material impact on the nature, quality or quantity of service provided to BE licensees, and will not adversely impact opportunities for licensees. Ministerial decisions only involve matters as to which no active participation with the OVRC is required pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-12 of the Administrative Code.

~~(BB)~~(DD) "Monthly Operating Report (MOR)" is facility financial information as submitted monthly by the facility operator and consists of all sales, sales tax collected, discounts, gifts, rebates, federal vending machine income as described in CFR 34, ~~Part~~ 395.32, income from subcontracted facility sales, promotional considerations, and bonuses, either monetary or in kind, stock purchased, business related expenses, employee wages, draw, stock and supply inventory, and business cash on hand, which the operator has the power to obtain and control the disposition thereof, accrued from operation of a facility.

~~(CC)~~(EE) "~~Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission~~Opportunities for Ohioans with Disabilities" (~~ORSCOOD~~) is the state agency responsible for helping people with disabilities seek and retain substantial gainful employment in Ohio.

~~(DD)~~(FF) "Ohio Vendors Representative Committee" (OVRC) is the group of operators elected from their respective districts in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-12 of the Administrative Code.

~~(EE)~~(GG) "Operator" is a licensee authorized to operate a facility through a signed BOA and/or bureau temporary operator agreement (BTOA).

~~(FF)~~(HH) "Other Expenses" is expenditures on the daily cash report as defined in appendix A to this rule.

~~(GG)~~(II) "Professional Manner" is exemplifying methods, character, and standards of a business person, which includes demonstrating sound fiscal management practices.

~~(HH)~~(JJ) "Records Review" is the review of records ~~pertainingas~~ prescribed by BSVI. The review pertains to the operation of a BE business and includes financial information regarding sales, sales tax collected, discounts, gifts, rebates, federal vending machine income as described in ~~CFR 34, Part~~ CFR 395.32, income from subcontracted facility sales, lottery commissions, promotional considerations, and bonuses, either monetary or in kind, stock purchased, business related expenses,

3304:1-21-01

employee wages, draw, stock and supply inventory, and business cash on hand.

~~(H)~~(KK) "Regular Meeting" is any prearranged gathering of the OVRC and BE by a majority of its' members to discuss public business. A schedule of regular meetings including dates and times will be set in July of each year.

~~(J)~~(LL) "Seniority" is the time the licensee accrues beginning on the date BE issues the license or the date pursuant to the earliest documentation establishing participation in the Ohio BE.

~~(K)~~(MM) "Service charge" is the total of the fee assessed by BE upon the operator's net monthly proceeds and may include penalty charges, as well as co-payment for maintenance and repair labor charges.

~~(N)~~(NN) "Site" is a business location suitable for vending, determined to not have sufficient gross sales to exist as an independent BE Facility.

~~(L)~~(OO) "Special Meeting" is any meeting other than a regular meeting when notice is provided pursuant to paragraph ~~(E)~~(EF) of rule 3304:1-21-12 of the Administrative Code.

~~(M)~~(PP) "State property" is defined in division (C) of section 3304.28 of the Revised Code.

~~(N)~~(QQ) "Vacant Facility" is a suitable vending location without a licensee permanently assigned, or for which BE has notice of an operator's pending departure.

AMENDED

Appendix
3304:1-21-01

Appendix A

1 Other expenses are costs personally paid by the operator for the following goods and services necessary to operate a facility; an operator may subtract such costs from the gross monthly income if the expenses are documented by cancelled checks, receipts, or other documentation, and are paid within the report's period. Other expenses shall be subject to review and approval by BE and are:

(a) Supplies for expendable items which are necessary for day-to-day facility operation, but are not for resale as defined in paragraph (B) 3304:1-21-05 of the Administrative Code.

(b) Janitorial service for a commercial firm or independent contractor to clean the facility, or to remove trash. Such costs are deductible unless the bureau-grantor agreement, facility permit, or other BSVI agreement assigns such responsibility to someone other than the operator.

(c) Business licenses.

(d) Telecommunications charge for the cost of required business telephone or business internet services.

(e) Cost of uniforms, rented or owned, and laundry charges only when used for the business.

(f) Business advertising for the reasonable cost of advertising and promotional activities intended to support and/or increase facility sales.

(g) Premiums for insurance coverage for off-site storage facilities.

(h) Rent to grantor, if required by agreement for location.

(i) Expense for storage space.

(j) Utilities for the facility when not included in rent.

(k) Employer contribution for social security.

(l) Workers' compensation premiums.

(m) Ohio unemployment taxes.

(n) Federal unemployment taxes.

(o) Sales taxes.

(p) Pre-approved training expenses of up to one-thousand dollars per year; such training must be directly related to the job.

(q) Temporary operators on BTOA on fee.

(r) Vehicle expenses to be used only if a vehicle is required for a facility. Any vehicle expenses listed on the monthly operating report shall require an additional vehicle expense report to be completed and retained by the operator for that monthly operating report.

Only one method of expensing the vehicle shall be allowed each calendar year, unless a new vehicle is acquired during the year. Commuter miles, personal use of vehicle and/or depreciation costs must be excluded in either method.

Method one - actual costs shall include the business percentage of the following expenses: vehicle insurance, vehicle registration, gasoline, oil, other maintenance costs, and monthly lease or payment.

Method two - standard mileage rate, as allowed by the internal revenue service for that calendar year for each business mile.

(s) Pre-approved miscellaneous expenses. Documentation for these expenses may be requested to accompany the monthly operating report.

(t) Business dues.

(u) Professional merchandise delivery services.

(v) Pest exterminator services.

(w) Bookkeeping/accounting services.

(x) The purchase of a computer and/or business-related computer expenses.

(y) Business legal fees (not associated with any adversarial procedures against RSC).

(z) Air conditioner, filter, and fire suppression services and/or security system costs.

(aa) Banking fees.

(bb) Documented refunds to customers.

(cc) CAT Tax

(dd) Credit card related fees

***** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED *****

3304:1-21-02

Eligibility for business enterprise training and licensure.

(A) To be eligible to enter into BE training to become a licensee, a person must meet the following criteria:

- (1) Is a citizen of the United States;
- (2) Is at least twenty-one years of age;
- (3) Is legally blind, as defined in paragraph (D) of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code;
- (4) Has a high school diploma or has obtained a general education diploma;
- (5) Has the ability to operate a facility with or without reasonable accommodations;
- (6) Has math skills to calculate fractions, decimals and percentages;
- (7) Demonstrates effective oral and written communication skills;
- (8) Demonstrates appropriate interpersonal skills for a retail business environment;
- (9) Has successfully completed a pre-evaluation in-facility training experience as required;
- (10) Has no past due BE debts in Ohio or any other state and no outstanding Randolph Sheppard program charges;
- (11) Demonstrates ability to manage personal finances which shall include a credit check;
- (12) Passes required drug testing;
- (13) Has no record of criminal activity.

(B) A person is eligible for a license if the person:

- (1) Successfully Demonstrates the ability to operate a facility with or without

3304:1-21-02

accommodations and successfully completes BE approved training;

(2) Passes the licensure exam; and

(3) Continues to meet the eligibility requirements listed in paragraph (A)(3) of this rule.

(C) A person shall no longer be eligible to maintain a license when that person:

(1) Voluntary surrenders the license; or

(2) Is deceased, or

~~(2)~~(3) Fails to enter into a BOA or BTOA for two consecutive years, unless after written request from the licensee to BE and through active participation with OVRC, BE agrees to grant additional one year extension(s).

(D) Any ineligibility for licensure listed in paragraph (C) of this rule shall not be subject to the provisions of rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code or Chapters 119.06 to 119.09 of the Revised Code.

(E) Upon licensure BSVI may only deny, revoke, or suspend a license pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code.

expenses;

- (g) Approximate initial inventory amount;
- (h) Information about whether space, if any, is available at the facility for inventory storage or if the operator must provide off-site storage and product transport;
- (i) The yearly total receipts and net proceeds, for up to three preceding fiscal years as records allow, or for a new facility, the projected yearly total receipts and net proceeds;
- (j) Reasons for fluctuation in proceeds, if known;
- (k) The days and hours of operation;
- (l) The number of employees presently employed, with notation that persons who are blind or otherwise disabled and are qualified for the job shall be given preference when hiring in any BE facility;
- (m) Available public transportation;
- (n) Projected changes in the facility (e.g., relocation and remodeling);
- (o) Any special training, physical requirements, and mobility skills required for the job;
- (p) The location, type, and level of competing food service;
- (q) BE designee, tour availability and special requirements;
- (r) Fees, assessments, financial obligations, and other specific items required by the BGA;
- (s) Security clearances required by the BGA; and
- (t) A description of any site determined to be subject to refusal by the successful applicant.

(C) In order to be considered an eligible applicant, licensees who apply for the available

3304:1-21-03

facility must:

- (1) Submit a completed application which states the applicant's name, business address, telephone number, current facility, if any, facility desired and all supporting documents using the form prescribed by BE which must be received at the specified location by the date and time specified in the facility announcement; and
 - ~~(2) Submit for verification the following supporting documents:~~
 - ~~(a) Copy of current state of Ohio vendors license issued by the Ohio department of taxation;~~
 - ~~(b) If applicable, a copy of the worker's compensation certificate verifying payments are current as of the facility announcement posting date;~~
 - ~~(3) Have operated their current facility for at least one hundred twenty days, if the applicant has a permanent facility at the time of application;~~
 - ~~(4)~~(2) Have no past due program charges in Ohio or any other state's Randolph Sheppard program or grantor required payments as of the application deadline date.
- (D) If the selection panel by majority vote determines that an applicant attempts to obtain a facility through fraud, falsification, or criminal activity the applicant shall be removed from consideration.
- (E) A selection panel shall consist of the:
- (1) BE program manager or designee as selection panel chair; and
 - (2) OVRC representative and alternate for the area of the vacant facility unless the OVRC representative or alternate is an applicant for the vacant facility, or declines to serve. A member of the selection panel who has a personal interest or conflict of interest in relation to the facility or applicants, direct or indirect, shall voluntarily withdraw from the selection panel. In such case the OVRC chair or the OVRC chair's designee will participate.
- (F) When there is more than one eligible applicant the selection panel will award the facility to the candidate that accumulates the most points assigned by the majority vote of the selection panel members for each of the following criteria:
- (1) Applicant is a licensee, then apply the default score of ~~nine~~eight points;

- (2) Applicant was/is an operator for less than twelve months in the past twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply the default score of ~~ten~~nine points;
- (3) Applicant has been an operator for twelve months or more in the past twenty-four months and has:
 - (a) No late reports, inventories, or payments, in the most recent twelve months of the past twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply four points; or
 - (i) No more than one late report, inventory, or payment, in the most recent twelve months of the past twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply two points.
- (4) Applicant had a ~~plan of corrective action~~ an operator performance improvement plan in the twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply minus two points for each operator performance improvement plan up to minus 4 points;
- ~~(5) Applicant file demonstrates a pattern of customer or grantor complaints in the last three years, then apply minus four points;~~
- ~~(6) Applicant has supplied the selection panel a copy of their current safety and sanitation certificate, then apply one point;~~
- ~~(7) Applicant has supplied the selection panel a copy of their current CPR/first aid certificate, then apply one point;~~
- ~~(8)~~(5) Applicant has supplied the selection panel documentation demonstrating attendance at an ~~in-service training~~upward mobility training in the twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply one point for each with a maximum of ~~two~~three points;
- ~~(9)~~(6) Applicant has supplied the selection panel verified documentation of a college degree or five years experience in business management, then apply one point;
- ~~(10)~~(7) Applicant during their career has managed a facility for a minimum of one year with the same service format (~~i.e. vending, cafeteria, counter, or combination~~); then apply three points;

- (11)(8) Applicant has job description on file with BE or has no employees, then apply one point;
- (12)(9) Applicant has written cleaning schedule in current location, then apply one point;
- (13)(10) Applicant has supplied the selection panel ~~documentation for current marketing strategy implemented within two years prior to the application deadline, then apply one point~~ with a marketing plan, on a form prescribed by BE. Apply one point if the implementation of the marketing plan has been verified;
- (14)(11) Applicant meets ~~or exceeds~~ gross profit goal percentage in the most recent twelve months of the past twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply one point;
- (15)(12) Applicant meets ~~or exceeds~~ net profit goal percentage in the most recent twelve months of the past twenty-four months prior to the application deadline, then apply one point.
- (G) In case of a tie in point totals the selection panel will ~~further evaluate the tied applicants by using criteria in paragraph (F)(3) of this rule looking back in one year increments for each of the tied applicants adding additional points for each year the criteria is met until the tie is broken or a maximum of three years have been evaluated. In the event a tied applicant's record is not comprised of three additional years the facility will be awarded to the applicant with the longest record that generates the most additional points. If after the additional three year evaluation there is still a tie, the selection panel chair shall draw lots to determine the selected operator~~ award the facility to the applicant with the most seniority, in accordance with the seniority list managed by BE. If both applicants have are tied after seniority is considered, the selection panel shall draw lots to determine which applicant shall be awarded the facility.
- (H) If by majority vote the selection panel determines that none of the applicants meet the requirements of paragraph (C) of this rule, a determination for reposting the vacant facility shall be made per paragraph (A) of this rule.
- (I) If the successful applicant declines the facility then the next applicant with the most total points shall be offered the facility. Ties shall be broken as listed in paragraph (G) of this rule.
- (J) Successful applicants who decline the facility after the award offer shall not be an

eligible candidate for any operator openings for ~~one hundred twenty~~thirty calendar days. If the awarded facility is a new or temporarily closed facility in which the actual opening has been delayed more than thirty calendar days from the opening date stated in the facility announcement this penalty shall not apply. A successful candidate who declines the facility within two business days after the award notice is not subject to the thirty day ineligibility period.

~~(K) BE may enter into a BTOA for up to twelve months to ensure the continued operation of a vacant facility or to establish reliable sales data. Any extension beyond twelve months requires the active participation of the OVRC. The BTOA shall:~~

~~(1) State the duties of the operator as defined in the BTOA;~~

~~(2) State that the temporary operator shall not take leave without approval of BE;~~

~~(3) State that prices shall not be altered by the temporary operator without the consent and/or direction of BE;~~

~~(4) State that the agreement may be terminated immediately without cause upon written notice of either party.~~

~~(L) Temporary facility assignments shall be offered to displaced operators based on length of time displaced and if no displaced operators accept the assignment, then to licensees with the least income. For purposes of this rule, "least income" shall be determined by adding the operator's net proceeds from all BE facilities as reflected on the operator's MOR for the previous twelve months. Ties in least income shall be broken based on seniority. If there is still a tie the BE designee shall draw lots to determine the selected operator. All offers shall be for net proceeds basis first then offered on a fee basis.~~

~~(M) In situations where there is a possibility of the loss of a facility or sales figures need to be established or re-established, an exception to the displaced operator/low income priority may be made by BE, with the active participation of the OVRC.~~

~~(N) Operators/licensees are not eligible for temporary facility assignments if they:~~

~~(1) Have past due program/grantor debt; or~~

~~(2) Have submitted three or more late reports and/or payments in the previous twelve months; or~~

~~(3) Have pending discipline; or~~

~~(4) Have been removed from a facility according to paragraphs (C)(1), (C)(2), (C)(4) and (D) of rule 3304:1-21-09 or rule 3304:1-21-13 of the~~

3304:1-21-03

~~Administrative Code in the previous twelve months of the date on which the temporary assignment is offered; or~~

~~(5) Are on a plan of corrective action.~~

~~(K)~~ BE will maintain and update the licensee seniority list quarterly.

***** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED *****

3304:1-21-04

Operator's responsibilities, leave and self-employment status.

(A) The operator shall:

- (1) Comply with section 3304.30 of the Revised Code.
- (2) Consult with the BE specialist prior to creating a position and contact the specialist for referrals when filling a new or vacant position. Operators may hire temporary employees while actively seeking qualified applicants who meet the preferences set forth in paragraphs (A)(3) and (A)(4) of this rule. Operators shall document their outreach and other efforts to meet the preferences set forth in paragraph (A)(3) of this rule.
- (3) When hiring give preference to qualified applicants in the following order:
 - (a) ~~People~~ Individuals who are blind;
 - (b) Then ~~RSC~~ individuals with visual impairments who are currently receiving vocational rehabilitation services from OOD~~consumers with visual impairments;~~
 - (c) Then individuals who are currently receiving vocational rehabilitation services from OOD~~RSC consumers;~~
 - (d) Then ~~persons~~ individuals with other disabilities.
- (4) Not unlawfully deny employment to any qualified person.
- (5) Comply with provisions as outlined in rule 3304:1-21-06 of the Administrative Code.
- (6) Operate facilities in accordance with the BGA or permit.
- (7) Designate someone to assume supervision of the facility and notify BE of the designee if the operator is absent from the facility for more than one business day. During the operator's absence from the facility, all responsibilities remain with the operator and shall not be set aside by the operator's absence.
- (8) Be responsible for complying with federal, state, and local laws with respect to,

3304:1-21-04

but not limited to, taxes, workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, and social security taxes. Operators are self-employed persons and not employees of the state of Ohio.

- (9) Subcontract only with express prior written approval of BE.
- (a) The criteria to consider approval for subcontracting are:
- (i) Achieve compliance with the BGA; or
 - (ii) Implement a partnering arrangement to produce sales from a specific product line or market segment not otherwise available or feasible for the operator to manage.
- (b) All income from subcontracted sales shall become part of the facility's total monthly receipts and shall be reported by the operator as indicated in rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code.
- (c) All subcontracting arrangements shall be evaluated on an individual basis.
- (10) Maintain a drug-free workplace The Licensee or any of the licensee's employees shall not be under the influence of, consume, possess, or distribute illegal substances, illegal drugs, or alcohol at a BE facility.
- (11) Provide BE with the operator's current home address and telephone number and current business address and telephone number.
- (12) ~~Observe~~ Maintain a high standard of personal hygiene. Attire shall be appropriate for the facility as determined by BE or as specified in the BGA or permit.
- (13) Acquire, maintain, and, upon request, provide evidence of adequate liability insurance as required-by the BGA, permit or law.
- (14) Unless otherwise established by contract, permit or regulation, the operator shall establish retail prices for merchandise.
- (15) Provide each employee a payroll earnings statement each pay period and each calendar year, and retain copies of these statements for business records. All employees shall be issued a W-2 or 1099 form.

3304:1-21-04

- (16) Not add to or take from the facility any equipment without the BE's written approval.
- (17) Be responsible for routine cleaning and maintenance of the facility and equipment. Cleaning and maintenance shall be appropriate for the facility as determined by BE or as specified in the BGA or permit.
- (18) Acquire adequate inventory storage space if not available at the facility. Such storage shall be in compliance with any applicable health and property use codes.
- (19) Prepare and retain a detailed daily cash report for each day there is a business expenditure or revenue collection including itemized expenditures on the daily cash report.
- (20) Prepare a report listing monthly totals to include but not limited to, sources of total monthly receipts and requested expenditures. The listing of monthly totals shall include revenue collection for each business address location for the assigned facility.
- (21) Upon request by BE and operator shall provide supporting documentation of information reported on the Monthly Operating Report (MOR). Verification of information does not constitute a records review. Submit to a record review no more than once every three federal fiscal years performed by BE from the effective date of this rule except as provided for in paragraph (A)(4) of rule 3304:1-21-09 of the Administrative Code. A record review that results in a finding is subject to rule 3304:1-21-10 of the Administrative Code.
- (22) New licensees shall be subject to a records review once a year for the first three years of being under a BOA or BTOA. All other licensees may be subject to a records review in conjunction with an operator performance improvement plan under rule 3304:1-21-10 or if it is determined that the operator is managing a facility in violation of the provisions of Chapter 3304:1-21 of the Administrative Code.
- ~~(22)~~(23) Operate the facility in a professional manner.
- ~~(23)~~(24) Execute facility-related transactions only through the operator's business accounts.
- ~~(24)~~(25) Be subject to penalties for late or partial payments and/or reports as noted in rule 3304:1-21-09 of the Administrative Code.

~~(25)~~(26) Be responsible for the return or reimbursement of the value of the inventory provided. This applies to assigned operators under a BOA or BTOA, including and temporary operators receiving income from a fee or net proceeds, unless there is an exemption to this requirement specifically stated in the BTOA.

~~(26)~~(27) Be responsible for completing and submitting the following a MOR reports to BE in the format prescribed by BE. All purchases and liabilities must be liquidated, processed for collection or determined uncollectible within ninety days of the day the purchase or liability is incurred, and shall include, ~~but not be limited to, the following reports:~~

~~(a) The MOR submitted in paper format completed in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code due the first day of the following month and will not be considered late if received or postmarked by close of business on the tenth calendar day of the following month. If such day is Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is the next BSVI workday. If an electronic MOR is required to be completed in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code it is due the first day of the following month and will not be considered late if received by close of business on the twenty-fourth calendar day of the following month; and~~

~~(b)~~(28) Be responsible for completing and retaining a detailed stock inventory report of BE owned facility merchandise that shall be completed ~~and submitted~~ with the December and June MOR except ~~when the MOR is being filed electronically or~~ when there is a facility closing within thirty days prior to either of these dates. Stock inventory reports shall be retained by the operator for six months. Additional inventories may be required when BE deems them necessary for reasonable business purposes. BE may require operator participation.

***** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED *****

3304:1-21-05

Equipment, supplies and initial stock inventory.

- (A) Equipment is owned and shall be maintained by BE. Equipment includes any item with a depreciable life of one year or more.
- (B) Supplies shall be provided by BE initially. This includes any item with a depreciable life of less than one year not included in paragraph (C) of this rule. Supplies shall be replaced by the operator thereafter.
- (C) BE shall provide an initial stock inventory. Stock inventory includes items available for retail sale. The operator shall maintain this stock inventory at the level provided by the bureau, ~~or may reduce the inventory through an agreement with BE. The agreement shall include the amount of the payment, payment dates, the current initial inventory amount and the amount of reduction to reach the initial inventory target.~~
- (D) Lottery tickets are not included in a BE facility's inventory count and shall not be counted or reported as part of the semi-annual inventory. Operators must adhere to the agreement between the Ohio Lottery Commission and the operator.

3304:1-21-06

(5) Have had any discipline taken against their license pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code within the previous twelve months of the date the temporary assignment is offered; or

(6) Are on an operator performance improvement plan.

(D) The BTOA shall:

(1) State that the operator shall not take leave without approval of BE;

(2) State that prices shall not be altered by the temporary operator without the consent or direction of BE; and

(3) State that the agreement may be terminated immediately without cause upon written notice of either party.

(E) The temporary operator shall be compensated in accordance with the BTOA by fee or net proceeds.

(1) If compensated by net proceeds, the temporary operator is required to pay a service charge in accordance with 3304:1-21-08 of the Administrative Code.

(2) The temporary operator who is on fee shall pay all facility profits to BE. The temporary operator shall record any payment on the MOR for the same reporting period. All unpaid profits shall be reported and paid on the final MOR.

(F) The BSVI director may immediately suspend the BOA for up to forty-five days which shall not be considered discipline. Any extension the suspension of the BOA beyond the forty-five days requires the active participation of the OVRC. The suspension of the BOA shall not exceed ninety days. The BOA may be suspended:

(1) When the action(s) or inaction(s) of the operator place(s) BE in jeopardy of losing the facility because of noncompliance with the permit or BGA;

(2) If the operator is absent from the location of the facility in violation of rule 3304:1-21-04 of the Administrative Code causing the facility to be closed or temporarily closed, in violation of the BGA;

(3) If the operator is arrested, engaging in, or indicted for criminal activity as defined in paragraph (N) of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code;

(4) If the actions or inactions of the operator cause or allow conditions to exist, which present danger to the operator or others; or

(5) The operator's access to the facility has been revoked.

(G) The BSVI director may terminate the BOA for the following reasons:

- (1) Failure of the operator to pay any fee required through the BOA, BGA, or permit by close of business on the fifteenth calendar after the receipt of the thirty day notice;
- (2) Failure of an operator to submit an MOR or inventory at the designated BE location by close of business on the fifteenth calendar day after the receipt of the thirty day notice;
- (3) Termination of the BGA, whether voluntary or involuntary;
- (4) Revocation or suspension of the operator's license in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code;
- (5) BE approval of written notice of resignation by the operator to BE;
- (6) For reasons noted in paragraph (F) of this rule, with active participation of the OVRC;
- (7) Failure of an operator to successfully complete an operator performance improvement plan; or
- (8) As otherwise listed in Chapter 3304:1-21 of the Administrative Code.

(H) Copies of the notices listed in (G)(1) and (G)(2) above shall be sent to the operator and the operator's area OVRC representative and alternate.

3304:1-21-07

(6) The outgoing operator shall submit the closing MOR to BE within 30 days of receipt of closing inventory documentation from BE; and

(7) The outgoing operator shall submit payment of the final service charge, any outstanding inventory charges and any other charges within thirty days of submission of the closing MOR.

(C) The BE obligations:

(1) Schedule and notify the outgoing and the incoming operator of date and time of the closing stock and equipment inventory;

(2) Prepare inventory closing forms for closing inventory, utilizing the most recent semi-annual stock inventory from the outgoing operator;

~~(2)~~(3) Organize and represent BE at the stock and equipment inventory as described in paragraph (A) of this rule. On the day of the closing stock and equipment inventory, BE will obtain the agreement and signature of the outgoing operator or their designee on the stock and equipment inventory count. Upon request, BE shall provide a copy of the stock and equipment inventory count; and complete and submit all closing inventory documentation. BE shall provide a copy of that day's physical inventory count within one business day signed by both operators;

~~(3)~~(4) Assure the facility is transferred in an operable condition and provide the incoming and outgoing operator a current copy of the facility equipment inventory signed by the incoming and outgoing operators and BE;

~~(4)~~(5) Complete a closing inspection noting facility and equipment condition and cleanliness signed by the incoming and outgoing operators and BE;

~~(5)~~(6) Assure that an inventory form of that day's count and either a BOA/BTOA, have been signed by the operator for the facility the day of the closing inventory; and

~~(6)~~(7) Assure that the incoming operator receives copies of the detailed stock inventory, BOA/BTOA, and the administrative rules governing the BE program within fifteen calendar days of date closing inventory is conducted. This time may be extended when BE takes charge of a facility pursuant to paragraph (D) of this rule.

(D) Whenever BE must take charge of a facility, due to the suspension of the BOA or

3304:1-21-07

BTOA pursuant to paragraph ~~(B)~~(F) of rule 3304:1-21-~~09~~ 06 of the Administrative Code, or the termination of the BOA or BTOA pursuant to paragraph ~~(C)~~(G) of rule 3304:1-21-~~09~~ 06 or paragraph ~~(A)(2)~~ or ~~(A)(3)~~ of rule 3304:1-21-10 of the Administrative Code, BE may assume temporary custody of the cash on hand until such time as outstanding service charges and inventory adjustment charges due BE are resolved.

*** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED ***

3304:1-21-08

Reporting service charge, and co-pay.

- (A) All reports shall be submitted in a format prescribed by BE for each facility for which that operator is responsible under a BOA ~~and or~~ and/or BTOA. Should BE consider substantive changes in the format it prescribes, BE will actively participate with OVRC before implementation.
- (B) Effective October 1, 2016 electronic submission, which shall include telephone reporting, is mandatory for all operators. BE may grant a temporary waiver to the requirement for electronic submission. The temporary waiver shall not exceed six months without active participation with the OVRC. BE shall actively participate with the OVRC on any waiver exceeding six months. BE may establish a system for submission for reports and records electronically, which may include a testing and evaluation period hereinafter referred to as the "Pilot Program."
- ~~(1) BE shall make electronic submission mandatory for any operator licensed on or after the effective date of this rule;~~
- ~~(2) For operators licensed before the effective date of this rule electronic submission shall be optional. After completion of the pilot program and/or training the electronic submission will remain optional until such time as the operator declares participation in electronic submission, there is a change in law, or the governor issues a directive or executive order mandating electronic submission of reports and records;~~
- ~~(3) BE and OVRC shall actively participate in the pilot program which shall include the following:~~
- ~~(a) Operate for a maximum of six months. BE shall actively participate with the OVRC to further extend the pilot if necessary.~~
- ~~(b) Be voluntary except as set forth in paragraphs (B)(1) and (B)(4) of this rule;~~
- ~~(c) Require submission both electronically and paper format;~~
- ~~(d) Pilot participants shall invoice BE at the end of the pilot project for one hundred dollars for each full month of participation in the project;~~
- ~~(4) If BSVI does not receive an adequate number of volunteers it shall select ten per cent of the available operators for the required pilot; and~~
- ~~(5) A sixty day moratorium on penalties in paragraph (C) of this rule for untimely submission of the MOR or payments shall begin on the first day for~~

3304:1-21-08

~~mandatory electronic submittal. This penalty moratorium may be extended sixty days upon active participation between BSVI and the OVRC and applies only to electronic submittal.~~

(C) An MOR submitted in either paper format or electronically is due on the last calendar day of the following month. If the due date for a paper MOR falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday the MOR is due the next BSVI workday.

~~(C)(D) When reports or payments are unpaid, incomplete or late not submitted, submitted inaccurately, or submitted untimely, penalties shall be applied pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-09 of the Administrative Code. pilot participation payment(s) shall be disallowed and penalties shall be applied pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-09 of the Administrative Code. Pilot participants shall not be penalized for erroneous or late submission through the pilot program but pilot participants are not excused from the obligations associated with submission of the MOR in a paper format.~~

~~(D)(E) Each month, each operator, shall submit the following:~~

(1) A service charge to BE which shall not exceed:

(a) Ten per cent of net proceeds up to one thousand dollars; plus

(b) Fifteen per cent of net proceeds over one thousand dollars up to two thousand five hundred dollars; plus

(c) Twenty per cent of net proceeds over two thousand five hundred dollars; plus.

(2) Co-payment fee on maintenance and repair service calls, which include on-site labor and/or mileage charges, except in the following cases:

(a) For thirty calendar days after a piece of equipment is reassigned to a new location; or

(b) For thirty calendar days after an operator is reassigned to a new location.

~~(3) At the meeting immediately preceding October first each year, BE will collaborate with OVRC, and contingent on the availability of BE funds, shall determine for the next FFY the amount of:~~

~~(a) Co-payment per service call;~~

~~(b) Payments assuring a fair minimum of return pursuant to 34 C.F.R. Part~~

395;

- ~~(c) Benefits payments such as a pension fund, health insurance, paid sick leave, and paid vacation;~~
- ~~(d) Rates of reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses for OVRC representatives and alternates to attend regular meetings of the OVRC.~~
- ~~(e) Rates of compensation for OVRC representatives and OVRC alternate representatives for attendance at regular meetings of the OVRC.~~

~~(E)~~(F) Full payment of the MOR charges shall be made to BE by the close of business the ~~last~~fourteenth calendar day after the date on the invoice when filing a paper MOR of the following month. If the operator is submitting payment by a non-electronic means and the due date for the charges fall on such day is Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is the next BSVI workday. ~~For electronic MOR filing full payment of MOR charges are due the twenty-fourth calendar day of the month.~~

~~(F)~~(G) If an MOR is outstanding forty-five days after its due date then BE shall prepare and send a written estimate of charges due and the operator shall be subject to penalty as described in rule 3304:1-21-09 of the Administrative Code.

~~(G)~~(H) If the operator disagrees with a portion of the MOR charges prior to the due date of the disputed MOR charges, the operator shall:

- (1) Submit a letter and supporting documentation describing the dispute to the BSVI director;
- (2) The BSVI director shall review the documentation and investigate the dispute;
- (3) Within thirty days of receipt of the dispute notification the BSVI director shall make a ruling as to whether the disputed charges should be rescinded by BE or paid by the operator;
 - (a) If the charges are to be rescinded, BE will make every effort to correct prior to the next MOR filing after the date of the ruling letter;
 - (b) If the charges are to be paid by the operator, the charges will be due in full within fourteen calendar days of the date of the ruling letter from the BSVI director;
- (4) If the operator is dissatisfied with the director's decision, the operator may take such action as permitted in rule 3304:1-21-14 of the Administrative Code.

3304:1-21-08

(5) If the operator is successful in such action the operator shall be reimbursed the amount of the disputed charges.

~~(H)~~(I) Service charges received by BE shall be used pursuant to 34 CFR 395.9, and may include assuring a fair minimum return to a displaced operator. The displaced operator receiving a fair minimum return must submit an invoice to BE for payment. A service charge shall not be levied against this amount nor shall it be shown on the MOR.

~~(I) BE shall submit benefit payments for eligible operators by March first.~~

~~(J) Any benefit payment shall be applied toward outstanding program debt.~~

*** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED ***

3304:1-21-09

Program penalties.

(A) Causes for penalty charges include: ~~reports required by BE that are incomplete, inaccurate or late;~~ payments of any type required by BE except payments required by the BGA, that are unpaid, incomplete or late; or checks returned for insufficient funds. The following penalty charges and actions shall be implemented except when the operator submits an ~~untimely report or unpaid, incomplete or late~~ payment due to ~~a verified admission for hospitalization of the operator, or the death of the operator or the operator's legal spouse, or when documented disaster or destruction of the facility or business records~~ a reported emergency which materially interferes with the operator's ability to file reports or make payments in a timely manner. Each operator will have the opportunity to utilize an emergency excuse not to exceed one use per federal fiscal year. The request for an emergency excuse must be made before the payment is due. In either the instance of an excused late ~~payment, reports or the payments~~ payment must be submitted within fifteen calendar days of the original due date. The progression of penalties shall apply on a per-facility basis.

- (1) The first occurrence in any federal fiscal year an operator has cause for penalty as cited in paragraph (A) of this rule, the operator shall receive written notice from BSVI that subsequent occurrences during the federal fiscal year shall be cause for monetary penalties.
- (2) The second occurrence in any federal fiscal year an operator has cause for penalty as cited in paragraph (A) of this rule, a penalty of one hundred dollars shall be added to the billing invoice for service charge. ~~If the operator upon the first imposition of this monetary penalty successfully completes a BE approved training the occurrence will be withdrawn. Upon the next occurrence the penalty shall be applied as a second occurrence and any subsequent occurrence shall progress to paragraph (A)(3) of this rule.~~
- (3) The third occurrence or more in any federal fiscal year an operator has cause for penalty as cited in paragraph (A) of this rule, a penalty of two hundred dollars shall be added to the billing invoice.
- (4) The fourth occurrence shall result in a two hundred dollar penalty, ~~corrective action plan~~ operator performance improvement plan, and additional record reviews as deemed appropriate. Such records reviews may be conducted by RSCOOD, its designee or agent.
- (5) In applying the above cited penalties, each occurrence in a federal fiscal year shall result in a progression of the penalties.

3304:1-21-09

(6) In addition to the above cited penalties and actions, the operator shall be charged a fifty-dollar program service fee for payments returned for insufficient funds.

~~(B) The BSVI director may immediately suspend the BOA for up to fourteen calendar days which shall not be considered discipline:~~

~~(1) When the actions or inactions of the operator places BE in jeopardy of immediately losing the facility because of noncompliance with the permit or BGA;~~

~~(2) If the operator is absent from the location pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-04 of the Administrative Code causing the facility to be closed or temporarily closed in violation of the BGA;~~

~~(3) If the operator is indicted and, or engaging in criminal activity as defined in paragraph (M) of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code;~~

~~(4) If the actions or inactions of the operator cause or allow conditions to exist, which present a clear and present danger to the operator or others.~~

~~(C) The BSVI director shall terminate the BOA for the following reasons:~~

~~(1) Failure to pay any fee required through the BOA by close of business on the fifteenth calendar day after receipt of the thirty day notice. Copies of the notice shall be sent to the area OVRC representative and alternate;~~

~~(2) Failure of an operator to submit an MOR or inventory at the designated BE location by close of business on the fifteenth calendar day after receipt of the thirty day notice. Copies of the notice shall be sent to the area OVRC representative and alternate;~~

~~(3) Termination of the BGA, whether voluntary or involuntary;~~

~~(4) Revocation or suspension of the operator's license in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code;~~

~~(5) BE approval of a thirty day written notice of resignation by the operator to BE;~~

~~(6) The date on which the closing inventory required in rule 3304:1-21-07 of the Administrative Code is conducted;~~

~~(7) As otherwise listed in Chapter 3304:1-21 of the Administrative Code.~~

~~(D)~~(B) Upon certification to the attorney general's office for past due program charges,

3304:1-21-09

BE may revoke as operator's license in accordance with rule 3304:1-21-13 of the Administrative Code unless paid in full within one hundred twenty days of certification.

~~(E)~~(C) Any unpaid program charges more than forty-five days past due shall have a twenty-five per cent penalty added to the total of unpaid program charges and shall then be forwarded to the state of Ohio, attorney general's office, collection recovery unit in accordance with section 131.02 of the Revised Code.

*** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED ***

3304:1-21-10

Operator corrective action performance improvement.

(A) ~~BE shall inform an operator in writing when~~ When there is evidence that demonstrates a pattern an operator is managing a facility in violation of the provisions of Chapter 3304:1-21 of the Administrative Code with exception of paragraph (A)(1), (A)(2), (A)(3), or (A)(4) of rule 3304:1-21-04 of the Administrative Code, BE shall place the operator on a performance improvement plan.

(1) The performance improvement plan shall be provided to the operator in writing and in an accessible format in accordance with 3304:1-21-11(B) of the Administrative Code.

~~(1) The operator shall, within thirty days of being so informed, submit to BE a detailed written plan of corrective action. BE shall offer assistance and the area OVR representative may assist the operator in preparing a plan of corrective action. The BE designee will review and issue a determination within ten working days of the due date as to whether the plan is acceptable.~~

(2) The performance improvement plan shall state the violation(s) to be cured and the time frame to cure the violations.

~~(2) An operator, who does submit an approved plan of corrective action shall have one hundred twenty days from the date on which the plan was approved to correct the noted deficiencies. Failure to correct the noted deficiencies shall result in the termination of the BOA for that facility on the one hundred twenty first day. Plans of corrective action shall terminate upon the correction of all noted deficiencies, or the expiration of one hundred twenty days after the plan of corrective action is approved, whichever first occurs. If the corrective action plan is a result of a record review finding, the operator may be subject to additional record reviews for up to one year after the issue was cured.~~

(3) If the operator does not cure the violation(s) within the stated time frame the BSVI director shall terminate the operator's BOA. Upon request of the operator, and for good cause shown, the BSVI director may extend the time for the violations to be cured.

~~(3) An operator who does not submit a plan of corrective action or whose plan is not approved, shall have sixty days from the date on which the plan was due to correct all noted deficiencies. Failure to correct the noted deficiencies shall result in the termination of the operator's BOA for that facility on the sixty first day.~~

(B) BE shall inform an operator in writing when there is evidence that demonstrates an operator is managing a facility in violation of the provisions of paragraph (A)(1), (A)(2), (A)(3), or (A)(4) of rule 3304:1-21-04 of the Administrative Code.

(1) The operator shall within thirty calendar days of being so informed submit to BE a detailed written performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~. BE shall offer assistance and the area OVRC representative may assist the operator in preparing a performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~. The BE designee will review and issue a determination within ten working days of the due date as to whether the plan is acceptable.

(2) An operator who does submit an approved performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~ shall have one hundred twenty days from the date on which the plan was approved to successfully complete the performance improvement ~~corrective action~~ plan. When completing the performance improvement ~~corrective action~~ plan if a qualified applicant who meets the preferences of paragraph (A)(3) or (A)(4) of rule 3304:1-21-04 of the Administrative Code is identified the operator shall hire that individual. Performance improvement plans ~~Plans of corrective action~~ shall terminate upon the correction of all noted deficiencies, or the expiration of one hundred twenty days after the performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~ is approved, whichever first occurs. Failure to fully demonstrate actions to correct the noted deficiencies shall result in the termination of the BOA for that facility on the one hundred twenty-first day.

(3) An operator, who does not submit a performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~ or whose plan is not approved, shall have sixty days from the date on which the plan was due to correct all noted deficiencies. Failure to correct the noted deficiencies shall result in the termination of the operator's BOA for that facility on the sixty-first day.

(C) BE shall actively participate with the local selection panel in the implementation, monitoring, ~~and assessment, and determination of a satisfactory completion of a~~ corrective performance improvement action plan:

(1) Prior to an operator being notified of placement on a performance improvement ~~corrective action~~ plan;

(2) As a resource in the development of the performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~;

(3) Providing updates on plan progress;

3304:1-21-10

- (4) Determining if the performance improvement plan ~~of corrective action~~ has been satisfied by majority vote of the selection panel. If a member of the selection panel has a personal interest or conflict of interest in relation to the operator or facility that person shall voluntarily withdraw from the selection panel.

- (D) Nothing in this rule modifies rule 3304:1-21-09 06 of the Administrative Code regarding the immediate temporary suspension of the BOA and loss of a facility as defined in said rule.

*** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED ***

3304:1-21-11

Authority and responsibility of BE.

BSVI has authority and responsibility for the BE pursuant to 34 C.F.R 395 and sections 3304.1628, and 3304.2829 of the Revised Code including, but not limited to:

- (A) Actively participate with the OVRC in major administrative decisions and in policy and program development;
- (B) Make every reasonable effort to provide all licensees with information, forms, BE computer programs and reports in an accessible format as defined in paragraph (A) of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code;
- (C) Make every reasonable effort to schedule meetings and hearings with licensees in an accessible facility;
- (D) Negotiate and enter into agreements, settlement agreements or contracts;
- (E) Seek and secure suitable vending facilities;
- (F) Have the right of access to any facility and/or facility storage space for purposes of operation, inspection, inventory, verification, and/or recovery;
- (G) Establish training programs for entry and upward mobility;
- (H) Apply rules and policy in a uniform manner;
- (I) Assist and train licensees ~~concerning legal, contractual, and policy compliance obligations;~~
- (J) Market and promote BE;
- (K) Provide to each licensee upon request access to all program and financial data of BSVI relevant to the operation of the BE program, including quarterly and annual financial reports;
- (L) Upon an operator's request, refer ~~Refer~~ qualified candidates whenever possible to operators with personnel vacancies;
- (M) Perform periodic inspections and prepare a written report on a form prescribed by

3304:1-21-11

BSVI;

- (N) Perform an annual operator performance appraisal, annual budget projection, and ~~such facility visits as required to document management and operational deficiencies and to support plans of corrective action.~~
- (O) Upon availability of funds, BE shall submit payment to eligible operators by March first after the OVRC recommendation to provide payout. Any benefit payment to an operator or licensee shall be first applied toward outstanding program debt, prior to payment to the licensee or operator.

***** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED *****

3304:1-21-12

Ohio vendors representative committee.

BE and OVRC will determine biannually at the meeting preceding October first, seven equitably representative electoral districts for the purpose of electing Ohio vendors representative committee (OVRC) representatives and alternates. The districts are as follows: Columbus, Zanesville, Akron-Canton, Cleveland, Toledo, Dayton, and Cincinnati.

(A) The OVRC shall be composed of seven operators who are party to a BOA and have been elected by the operators assigned to the same electoral district. Each member shall represent all operators assigned to the electoral district. An alternate representative who is party to a BOA shall also be elected for each electoral district.

(1) A representative and an alternate from each district shall be elected for a two-year term commencing on July first of the year of their election.

(2) If a representative is absent from a meeting, the alternate shall participate in that meeting with the full rights of the representative.

(3) If a representative is unable to complete a term, or ceases to be an operator, or moves from that electoral district, the alternate shall complete the term and a new alternate shall be elected to complete the original alternate's term, unless there are ninety days or less remaining in the term. If an alternate is unable to complete the term, or ceases to be an operator, or moves from that electoral district, or assumes the representative's position, a new alternate shall be elected to complete the original alternate's term, unless there are ninety days or less remaining in the term.

(B) The committee representatives and alternates shall be elected as follows:

(1) Elections shall be held for OVRC representatives and alternates of Akron-Canton, Cleveland, and Cincinnati in even numbered years and for Columbus, Zanesville, Toledo, and Dayton in odd numbered years.

(2) On or before April thirtieth in the year in which the representative is to be elected, BE shall conduct a nominating meeting.

(3) An operator must be present at this meeting to be nominated as a representative or alternate unless prior approval is granted by BE. Only operators may nominate and vote.

- (4) If only one candidate is nominated, that operator shall be declared the winner by acclamation.
- (5) If more than one candidate is nominated, BE shall prepare a ballot listing all the candidates and shall distribute ~~by mail~~ a copy to each operator in the area within fifteen calendar days of the nominating meeting.
- (6) The ballot shall be counted only if it is marked for one candidate and received on or before the fifteenth calendar day from the date the ballot was ~~distributed~~~~mailed~~. All ballots received, which are eligible to be counted. ~~The ballot~~ will not be counted until after that date.
- (7) The candidate receiving the most votes shall be the representative and the candidate receiving the next greatest number of votes shall be the alternate. In case of a tie, the representative shall be the operator with the most seniority. The alternate shall be the operator who has the next greatest amount of seniority.
- (8) Within fifteen days of counting the ballots, BE shall inform each licensee within the area, ~~by mail~~, the results of the election.
- (9) The operators of an established OVRC electoral district may petition the bureau to recall the current elected representative or alternate for misconduct or neglect of duty.
 - (a) The petition must be signed by fifty-one per cent of ~~the~~ all eligible ~~voting~~ operators of the given OVRC electoral district and shall clearly specify the charges brought against the elected representative or alternate.
 - (b) ~~BE OVRC~~ shall ~~determine~~~~verify~~ that just cause does exist for a recall ballot. BE shall send ~~by mail~~ a recall ballot to the eligible ~~voting~~ operators. Two-thirds of the eligible voting operators of the given OVRC electoral district are required to return a ballot with an affirmative vote in order to recall a representative or alternate. The results of the ballots shall be effective immediately.
 - (c) If the representative is recalled and a vacant position exists, the alternate will become the representative and the bureau will conduct an election within the next ninety days to elect a new alternate. The one exception will be if the recall vote occurs in the month prior to the regular election for that area, in which case no special election for an alternate will be held.

- (d) If the alternate is recalled, a special election shall be held to nominate and elect a new alternate in accordance with ~~to paragraph (B)(4)~~ of this rule.
- (C) The committee shall establish bylaws outlining how meetings shall be conducted and how officers will be elected and will file the bylaws with BE within one week of adoption.
- (D) Special elections to fill an unexpired term of a representative or an alternate, ~~as stated in paragraph (B)(3) of this rule,~~ shall be conducted in the following manner:
- (1) BE shall conduct a nominating meeting as soon as is reasonably possible.
 - (2) An operator must be present at this meeting to be nominated as a representative or alternate unless prior written approval is granted by BE. Only operators may nominate and vote.
 - (3) If only one candidate is nominated, that operator shall be declared the winner by acclamation.
 - (4) If more than one candidate is nominated, BE shall prepare a ballot listing all the candidates and shall distribute, ~~by mail,~~ a copy to each operator in the area within fifteen calendar days of the date of the nominating meeting.
 - (5) The ballot shall be counted only if it is marked for one candidate and received within thirty calendar days from the date the ballot was distributed. All ballots received which are eligible to be counted, will not be counted until thirty calendar days after the date the ballots were distributed of the nominating meeting.
 - (6) The candidate receiving the most votes shall complete the original term. In case of a tie, the declared winner shall be the candidate with the most seniority. The operator shall complete the original term.
 - (7) Within forty-five calendar days of the nominating meeting, BE shall inform each licensee within the area, ~~by mail,~~ of the election results.
 - (8) Elections may be conducted electronically if agreed upon by OVRC and BE.
- (E) At the meeting immediately preceding October first of each year, BE will actively participate with OVRC, and contingent on the availability of BE funds, shall

3304:1-21-12

determine for the next federal fiscal year, amount of:

(1) Co-payment per service call;

(2) Payments assuring a fair minimum of return pursuant to 34 CFR 395;

(3) Benefit payments such as a pension fund, health insurance, paid sick leave, and paid vacation;

(4) Rates of reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses for OVRC representatives and alternates to attend regular meetings of the OVRC; and

(5) Rates of compensation for OVRC representatives and OVRC alternates representatives for attendance at regular meetings of the OVRC.

~~(E)~~(F) The BSVI director, or designee, shall meet with the committee. Special meetings of the committee shall be convened within fifteen days of the written request of the majority of its members or upon the written request of the BSVI director. Committee members shall bear the cost of their expenses related to special meetings. BE shall bear the cost of actual and necessary expenses of committee members for attendance at regular meetings.

~~(F)~~(G) The ~~state~~ OVRC shall actively participate with BSVI in major administrative decisions and policy and program development with respect to BE. Such participation shall be as follows:

(1) BE shall, except as set forth in paragraph ~~(FG)~~(1)(d)(iv) of this rule, provide OVRC advance notice of the following issues affecting BE and upon which BE desires to take action, including:

(a) Decisions concerning contracts with BE vendors and suppliers;

(b) ~~The creation of, or substantive~~ ~~Substantive~~ changes to, forms operators complete and/or sign;

(c) Material changes in services provided to licensees;

(d) Settlement agreements that can be entered into by the BE manager which:

(i) Will result in the payment of program funds;

(ii) Will result in forfeiture of program funds;

- (iii) Will result in the alteration of an operator's records with respect to selection criteria;
 - (iv) Address issues which BE and OVRC have a requirement to actively participate under paragraph (FG) of this rule;
- (e) Identification of suitable sites;
- (f) ~~Selection of temporary operators~~ Extension of a BTOA beyond six months;
- (g) ~~Opening, closing, or posting existing facilities;~~
- ~~(h)(g) Reconfiguration of a vacant facility prior to posting. When the merger of two facilities results in greater than seventy five per cent of the statewide average net proceeds. If the merger results in seventy five per cent or less of the statewide average net proceeds then the local OVRC will make the determination;~~
- (h) Major reductions in funding of BE;
- (i) Known proposals to amend statutes, administrative rules or written policies affecting licensees;
- (j) Disputes with grantors that may result in the loss of a facility.
- (2) BE shall provide the OVRC members information including, but not limited to, documents or other material necessary to understand the issues that require active participation with as much advance notice as reasonably possible for the next regularly scheduled OVRC meeting agenda.
- (3) OVRC shall provide the BSVI director information including but not limited to, documents or other material necessary to understand the issues with as much advance notice as reasonably possible for the next regularly scheduled OVRC meeting agenda.
- (4) BE shall not take any action on a matter requiring active participation of OVRC without first securing the active participation of the OVRC, except:
- (a) BE may take action prior to securing active participation of the OVRC if an emergency occurs. In cases of emergency, the BSVI director shall make every effort to consult with the OVRC chair or vice chair prior to

taking action, and shall, when such an emergency has abated, provide to the OVRC chair a written description of the emergency and the action taken.

(b) BE may take action on issues requiring active participation if the OVRC does not respond within a reasonable time.

(5) BE may invite the OVRC to attend meetings with third parties concerning BE issues, programs and policies, and all meetings at which decisions will or may be made concerning any matter that would require the active participation of OVRC.

(6) Nothing in this rule prohibits the director of BSVI from administering the program and making any and all ordinary decisions regarding the administration of the program.

(7) OVRC chairperson or designee shall:

(a) Prepare an agenda of topics to be discussed by the OVRC at each meeting;

(b) Communicate to BE the written recommendations of the OVRC within fifteen business days following such meetings. These recommendations shall be considered by BE before any decisions are made except in a situation requiring the immediate action of the director;

(c) Receive and transmit to the state licensing agency grievances at the request of blind vendors and serve as advocates for such vendors in connection with such grievances;

~~(d) Participate in the operator selection system pursuant to rule 3304:1-21-03 of the Administrative Code;~~

~~(e)~~(d) Participate, with BSVIBE, in developing training ~~and re-training~~ programs;

~~(f)~~(e) Sponsor, with the assistance of BSVIBE, meetings for licensees.

***** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED *****

3304:1-21-13 Disciplinary procedures.

(A) BSVI may deny, revoke, or suspend a license upon proof that the licensee or applicant:

- (1) Has engaged in fraud, material deception, or material misrepresentation;
- (2) Has had the BOA terminated at least two times pursuant to paragraphs ~~(EG)~~(1), ~~(EG)~~(2), ~~(EG)~~(4~~6~~) and ~~(G)~~(7)~~(D)~~ of rule 3304:1-21-~~09~~ 06 of the Administrative Code;
- (3) Is convicted of criminal activity as defined in paragraph ~~(MN)~~ of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code;
- (4) Carries or possesses a firearm or concealed weapon in violation of law;
- (5) Is under the influence of alcohol, or illegal substances, or abused controlled substances at the work place or otherwise fails to maintain a drug-free work environment;
- (6) Is determined mentally incompetent;
- (7) Cannot perform an operator's duties;
- (8) Pursuant to 3304:1-21-9(B) of the Administrative Code; or
- ~~(8)~~(9) The operator or licensee no ~~Ne~~ longer meets the criterion of paragraph (D) of rule 3304:1-21-01 of the Administrative Code. The BSVI director shall require that a licensee submit to a vision exam and submit evidence of said vision exam performed within the past three months by an ophthalmologist selected and paid for by BSVI.

(B) The BSVI director shall notify the licensee and copy OVRC of the proposed action, basis for the action, and the hearing process pursuant to Chapters 119.06 to 119.09 of the Revised Code.

